
EXHIBIT B 
QUESTIONS FOR OFFERORS 

1. Describe how you would comply with 4 GCA § 4302(c)(9) (as amended by P.L. 35-92 (6/26/2020)), if you are 
not chosen as the “most economical and beneficial health insurance plan” and your plan is offered to employees 
who will have to pay any difference in premiums at their own cost. 

2. The offeror must provide a fully-insured but participating contract rate quote for the current plans and the 
individually requested benefits in Exhibit G. The offeror must confirm experience and expertise in complying with 
determining the Experience Participation Ratio (4 GCA §4302.3(g)). 

3.      The offeror must confirm that the plans offer specific types of coverage required by recently enacted Guam law, including
but not limited to coverage for:
a.       Routine costs of care during clinical trials (22 GCA § 18902, as added by P.L. 35-128 (12/29/20))
b.       Diabetes screening (22 GCA § 181004, as added by P.L. 35-104 (10/29/20))
c.        Cancer screening (22 GCA, Chapter 18, Article 10)
d.       Autism spectrum disorder (22 GCA, Chapter 18, Article 11)

4.      Describe any additional plan design features not already included in this request, including the cost (if any) of such
additional features, which you feel would increase the benefit value of the current FY 2021 Judiciary health care plans at
minimal cost.

5.      Provide samples of utilization and claims reports, enrollment reports, premium payment reports, large claim reports, and
any other reports you can produce which may be of benefit to the Judiciary in assessing the experience of the plan.

6.      Describe custom reporting capabilities, indicating whether the Judiciary will have the ability to create reports using an
online tool.

7.      In the situation where a special data request cannot be fulfilled using an online data tool, state if you will generate a
special report for the Judiciary. Indicate the cost and the timeframe when the report would be available.

8.      Confirm your ability to provide detailed claim information, for the current month and cumulative year to date, to the
Judiciary monthly basis. See Exhibit P for a list of data requirements.

9.      Describe the process for coordinating benefits when a person is insured by more than one health insurance plan for the
same condition.

10.      Describe the manner in which you propose to handle medical costs and services in the event of an emergency or illness
which occurs while off-island. Include how members will be able to access services at both participating and non-participating
providers.

11.       Describe your practice for sending enrolled members off-island for evaluation and treatment not obtainable in Guam.



12.      Describe any services you are providing via telehealth, such as phone or video physician/PA/nurse visits. If you offer
any off-island specialty tele-visits, briefly describe how these services are provided.

13.       Describe your prior authorization process.  What criteria are used, what documentation is required?
a.       What is the average turn-around-time for prior authorizations from request to approval or denial?
b.       What percentages of your denied prior authorizations are reversed on appeal?

14.      Describe any circumstances where Judiciary members would be required to pay and then seek reimbursement for care.
Describe the process for both participating providers and non-participating providers.

15.       Provide a list of all participating network providers by specialty area and facility type that are located: 
a.       In Guam 
b.       In Hawaii and the U.S. Mainland 
c.        In the Philippines
d.       In other non-U.S. based areas (Hong Kong, Japan, Korea, Taiwan)
This list should include hospitals, clinics, urgent care centers, and centers of excellence and their specialties. If applicable, add
a link to all your network providers’ websites.

16.      A list of Top 50 utilized providers by Judiciary employees is included as Exhibit R. Provide a network disruption analysis
based on the availability of these providers in your network.

17.       Describe claims paying procedures, including review of questionable claims and internal fraud controls.

18.      What is your average claims payment turn-around-time by provider (participating and non-participating), and member?
What percent (%) of claims are paid in 30 days? 45 days? More than 45 days? (Refer to page 23 & 24 of the RFHP for Claims
Paid Aged as Percent table) 

19      Guam’s Prompt Payment Act of Guam requires that clean claims to be processed within 45 days. Can you confirm that,
in accordance with this law, clean claims will be processed and paid within 90 days of receipt from the provider? Describe any
circumstances that would prevent your compliance.

20.      Can you confirm that you will be able to process and pay reimbursements to members within 90-days of receipt of a
claim for any incorrect out-of-pocket expenses paid by the member?

21.      Report the total number of requests (by providers or members) for care outside the service area for your entire book of
business and the percentage of requests approved to the Philippines, United States and others. What percentage of these
requests are approved or denied? What are the top three (3) denial reasons? (Please refer to page 24 & 25 of the RFHP for
the Prior Authorization Requests table) 

22.       Explain how any changes to the provider network are communicated to subscribers and dependents.

23.       Describe how you communicate your benefit plan coverage and any changes to participating providers.



24.      Give the provider access time from call to first available appointment for primary care and specialty visits, both on Guam
and off-island.

25.      The offeror must confirm that a single source provider is covered as an in-network provider at the Usual Customary and
Reasonable (UCR) rate, and that member balance billing is not allowed in this circumstance. Describe the process for
payments and/or reimbursements in this circumstance.

26.       Provide the following information regarding your definition of Usual Customary and Reasonable (UCR) charges.
a.       How do you define UCR charges?
b.       How do you assign UCR values on Guam?  
c.        How do you assign UCR values to different geographic areas?  
d.       How frequently are your UCR charges updated?

27.      Under what circumstances do you apply Usual Customary and Reasonable (UCR) charges? Provide clear and detailed
examples, including calculations of a facility claim and a physician claim applying UCR charges as defined in each plan
proposed.

28.       Describe how member appeals and grievances are addressed. 
a.      How many were filed for members in the last two (2) fiscal years (October 1 to September 30)? What was the average
time to resolve these appeals?
b.      How many were filed for Providers in the last two (2) fiscal years (October 1 to September 30)? What was the average
time to resolve these appeals?

29.      The offeror must provide a proposal that includes a Disease Management and Wellness Incentive Program that
promotes wellness, primary care and preventive care, and manages and coordinates care for persons with chronic health
conditions or acute illness in accordance with 4 GCA § 4301. Describe how your program will comply with this requirement.
See Exhibit U for additional details.  

30.       Provide responses to the following questions about your company's online website/portal.  
a.    Accessible online 24 hours a day, 7 days a week?
b.    Allows covered person access to Patient Health Record?
c.    Allows covered person access to individual medical, dental and drug claims, including deductible and out-of-pocket
balance?
d.    Allows covered person to submit deductible claims and claims eligible for reimbursement?
e.   Allows covered persons and providers to download Schedules of Benefits, Member Handbooks, and Provider Network
information?
f.      Coordinates and authorizes pre-certification for covered persons and providers?
g.    Allows for electronic submission of prior authorization and electronic response?
h.    Allows providers to verify eligibility?
i.      Allows providers to submit claims for payment?
j.      Allows employer group enrollment and disenrollment?



31.      Provide the location of the offeror’s principal place of business. If awarded the contract, confirm that you will you have a
customer service office on Guam with standard operating hours.

32.      How many enrollees do you provide medical and/or dental coverage for other than the Government of Guam and the
Judiciary? 

33.      Provide the name of the individual responsible for certification of your company’s Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR)
reserves and his/her credentials.

34.      Describe how you will comply with the mandatory Judiciary performance guarantees subject to financial penalty
identified in Exhibit O.

35.      Provide the name of the insurance company or companies, including reinsurers, through which this policy will be
underwritten. Provide proof that all such insurance companies underwriting the risks are licensed to do business on Guam
pursuant to the Insurance Laws of Guam. If any part of the plan would be reinsured, please provide a copy of the face sheet
to the reinsurance agreement.

36.      The offeror must show evidence of the ability of the personnel of the principal insurance company and its local agent, if
any, to perform the services required. Include the technical training, education, experience, and the qualifications and abilities
of personnel proposed to be assigned to perform the services. Provide a detailed organizational chart that includes all
personnel to be assigned to this potential contract.

37.      Provide the offeror’s most recent financial rating status for the following rating agencies: A.M. Best, Standard & Poor’s,
Fitch, and Moody’s. If the offeror’s financial rating has changed within the past 12 months for any of the rating agencies,
indicate the new rating and the date received.  If the rating has not changed within the past 12 months, please indicate.

38.      Identify any charges, other than rates, that may be assessed against the Judiciary arising from this procurement (e.g.
marketing costs, printing costs, reporting, etc.).
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